

## TWENTY-FIFTH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Thursday, March 15, 1979

The Senate met at 10:00 o'clock a.m. and was called to order by the President.

### CALL OF THE SENATE

Mr. Hanson imposed a call of the Senate. The following Senators answered to their names:

Ashbach	Frederick	Lewis	Purfeerst	Strand
Benedict	Gearty	Luther	Rued	Stumpf
Bernhagen	Gunderson	Menning	Schaaf	Tennessee
Brataas	Hanson	Moe	Schmitz	Ueland, A.
Chenoweth	Hughes	Nelson	Schrom	Ulland, J.
Chmielewski	Humphrey	Nichols	Sikorski	Vega
Coleman	Jensen	Olson	Sillers	Willet
Davies	Johnson	Penny	Spear	
Dieterich	Kirchner	Perpich	Staples	
Dunn	Kleinbaum	Pillsbury	Stokowski	

The Sergeant at Arms was instructed to bring in the absent members.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Rev. Paul E. Schuessler.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

Anderson	Frederick	Knutson	Olson	Sillers
Ashbach	Gearty	Laufenburger	Penny	Solon
Bang	Gunderson	Lessard	Perpich	Spear
Benedict	Hanson	Lewis	Peterson	Staples
Bernhagen	Hughes	Luther	Pillsbury	Stokowski
Brataas	Humphrey	McCutcheon	Purfeerst	Strand
Chenoweth	Jensen	Menning	Renneke	Stumpf
Chmielewski	Johnson	Merriam	Rued	Tennessee
Coleman	Keefe, J.	Moe	Schaaf	Ueland, A.
Davies	Kirchner	Nelson	Schmitz	Ulland, J.
Dieterich	Kleinbaum	Nichols	Schrom	Vega
Dunn	Knaak	Ogdahl	Setzepfandt	Wegener
Engler	Knoll	Olhoff	Sikorski	Willet

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

### MEMBERS EXCUSED

Messrs. Keefe, S. and Sieloff were excused from the Session

of today. Mr. Nelson was excused from the Session of today at 10:30 o'clock a.m.

#### INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

Messrs. Engler, Nichols, Strand, Gunderson and Laufenburger introduced—

S. F. No. 874: A bill for an act relating to the Memorial Hardwood Forest; directing the sale or exchange of certain tillable parcels; responsibility for roads; retention of easements; authorizing exemptions.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Nichols introduced—

S. F. No. 875: A bill for an act relating to cable communications; abolishing the cable communications board; providing procedures for existing employees, cases, funds, and materials; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 238.01 to 238.17.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Gunderson introduced—

S. F. No. 876: A bill for an act relating to local government; permitting units in Fillmore County to spend money to assist blood collection.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Mr. Peterson introduced—

S. F. No. 877: A bill for an act relating to taxes; excluding various pensions, retirement benefits and survivor's benefits from income tax; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 290.01, Subdivision 20.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Johnson and Ulland, J. introduced—

S. F. No. 878: A bill for an act relating to St. Louis County; permitting collection by assessment of waste management service rates and charges.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Merriam, Strand, Knutson and Dunn introduced—

S. F. No. 879: A bill for an act relating to education; increasing state aid to school districts for operating certain community school programs; providing a minimum payment to districts for the operation of those programs; increasing the amount a district may levy for certain purposes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 124.271, Subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; and 275.125, Subdivision 8.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Sikorski and Hughes introduced—

S. F. No. 880: A bill for an act relating to courts; tenth judicial district; authorizing the position of civil commitment referee in Washington County; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 253A.21, by adding a subdivision; and Chapter 484, by adding a section.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Chenoweth introduced—

S. F. No. 881: A bill for an act relating to taxes; providing for a property tax exclusion for repairs made after destruction by natural disaster; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 273.11, Subdivision 1; and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mrs. Brataas, Messrs. Frederick, Chmielewski, Mrs. Staples and Mr. Sieloff introduced—

S. F. No. 882: A bill for an act relating to counties; fixing the amounts that may be spent for Memorial Day observances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 375.34; and 375.35.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Stokowski, McCutcheon, Merriam, Frederick and Jensen introduced—

S. F. No. 883: A bill for an act relating to taxation; property; eliminating the requirement for providing certificates of rent paid for purposes of the property tax refund; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 290A.19.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Nichols introduced—

S. F. No. 884: A bill for an act relating to the city of Marshall; permitting additional per capita revenue base for financing airport facilities.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Dieterich, Merriam, Knoll, Johnson and Sillers introduced—

S. F. No. 885: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing for homestead classification of property owned by certain real estate trusts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 273.133, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mrs. Brataas, Messrs. Frederick and Laufenburger introduced—

S. F. No. 886: A bill for an act relating to Olmsted County; permitting the intermittent inundation by flood water and temporary closing of county and town roads.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Olson, Lessard, Schmitz, Bernhagen and Spear introduced—

S. F. No. 887: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; allowing associations to undertake emergency conservation projects upon petition to the commissioner of natural resources.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Kirchner, Lewis, Olhoft, Knutson and Vega introduced—

S. F. No. 888: A bill for an act relating to tuberculosis; closing the Glen Lake State Sanatorium; requiring the treatment of tuberculosis; allocating costs of tuberculosis treatment for persons in the welfare system; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 144.422, Subdivisions 6 and 9; 144.424, Subdivisions 8 and 11; 144.425; 197.01; 251.043, Subdivision 1; 251.053; and 256.01, Subdivision 2; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 246.014, Subdivision 8; 251.01; 251.011, Subdivisions 2 and 5; 251.02; 251.03; and 251.11.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Sillers and Peterson introduced—

S. F. No. 889: A bill for an act relating to Independent School District No. 152, Moorhead; authorizing it to transfer certain funds from its general fund to its capital expenditure fund for the construction of an agricultural shop addition to the Moorhead AVTI; limiting the time for the transfer; limiting district expenditures for the addition; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Hanson, Olhoft, Olson, Bernhagen and Setzepfandt introduced—

S. F. No. 890: A bill for an act relating to taxation; exempting

interspousal transfers from gift and inheritance taxation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 291.01, Subdivision 4; 291.03; 291.05; 291.065; 291.14, Subdivision 2; 291.20, Subdivision 1; 292.04; 292.05, Subdivision 1; and 292.07, Subdivisions 3 and 5; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 291.051 and 292.01, Subdivision 7.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Bernhagen, Anderson, Dunn, Merriam and Sillers introduced—

S. F. No. 891: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing a special state aid to pay certain travel costs for teachers in certain cooperative programs; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 124.65.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Vega, Nichols, Nelson and Merriam introduced—

S. F. No. 892: A bill for an act relating to migrant labor; providing contract requirements; providing for the recruiting of migrant workers; prescribing penalties; providing for private causes of action; appropriating funds.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Hanson, Lewis, Nelson, Olhoft and Gunderson introduced—

S. F. No. 893: A bill for an act relating to counties; providing for the time for certain welfare board activities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 393.04; and 393.08.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Kleinbaum, Schrom, Bang, Frederick and Laufenburger introduced—

S. F. No. 894: A bill for an act relating to taxation; lowering the excise tax on natural and artificial sparkling wines on a temporary basis.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Kleinbaum and Bang introduced—

S. F. No. 895: A bill for an act relating to intoxicating liquor; hours for Sunday sale; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 340.14, Subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Hanson, Setzepfandt, Schmitz, Menning and Strand introduced—

S. F. No. 896: A bill for an act relating to the state auditor; providing for state payment of county audits; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 6.56; and 6.57.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Merriam, Renneke, Anderson, Hughes and Keefe, J. introduced—

S. F. No. 897: A bill for an act relating to the secretary of state; providing for printing and distributing the student edition of the legislative manual; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 5.09.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

Messrs. Peterson, Ogdahl and Stokowski introduced—

S. F. No. 898: A bill for an act relating to retirement; highway patrolmen; extending survivor benefit coverage to certain disabled employees; providing for increased employee and employer contributions and for an annual post retirement increase to certain retirees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 352B.02, Subdivision 1; 352B.11, Subdivision 2; and Chapter 352B, by adding a section.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Gunderson, Benedict, Spear, Luther and Knoll introduced—

S. F. No. 899: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income tax; providing an additional credit against tax for paraplegics and quadriplegics; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 290.06, Subdivision 3c.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Schmitz introduced—

S. F. No. 900: A bill for an act relating to waters; providing state funds for improvement of Prior Lake in Scott County; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Stokowski introduced—

S. F. No. 901: A bill for an act relating to the public employees retirement association; reducing penalty for early retirement; in-

creasing interest on refunds; providing for coordinated survivor benefits and survivor benefits after retirement; increasing the amount retirees may earn in public service without affecting the payment of their annuity; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 353.30, Subdivisions 1, 1b, 1c, and 3; 353.31, by adding subdivisions; 353.32, Subdivision 1; 353.34, Subdivision 2; 353.37, Subdivision 1; and 353.657, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Luther; Spear; Vega; Keefe, S. and Nichols introduced—

S. F. No. 902: A bill for an act relating to insurance; providing certain health insurance benefits to employees otherwise ineligible; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 62E.03, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Stokowski introduced—

S. F. No. 903: A bill for an act relating to the public employees retirement association; authorizing the acquisition of real estate and the construction of a building thereon; authorizing a lease with the state and specifying minimum rents; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Bang, Mrs. Brataas, Messrs. Tennessen, Solon and Laufenburger introduced—

S. F. No. 904: A bill for an act relating to banks and banking; extending the period for activation of detached facilities after issuance of certificates of authorization; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 47.54, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Willet, Dunn, Lessard, Laufenburger and Johnson introduced—

S. F. No. 905: A bill for an act relating to public lands; authorizing the transfer of titles to lands of the state and local units of government; specifying powers and duties of the land exchange board, the commissioner of natural resources, and local units of government in relation to title transfers.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Laufenburger introduced—

S. F. No. 906: A bill for an act relating to transportation; autho-

rizing an increase in the approved complement of the department for certain services; providing for reimbursement for the services; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Spear, Penny and Ogdahl introduced—

S. F. No. 907: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; establishing and empowering a Minnesota commission for the blind; transferring all powers and duties of the commissioner and department of public welfare in regard to the blind to the commission; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 248.07; and 248.08.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Spear, Stokowski, Gearty, Knoll and Ogdahl introduced—

S. F. No. 908: A bill for an act relating to civil service; extending certain optional insurance coverage for otherwise noneligible public employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 43.491, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Sikorski, Solon, Tennessen, Bang and Laufenburger introduced—

S. F. No. 909: A bill for an act relating to financial corporations; requiring payment of interest on certain escrow accounts required by mortgagees of multiple unit residential buildings; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 47.20, Subdivision 9.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Johnson introduced—

S. F. No. 910: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; authorizing the elderly to maintain or utilize fish houses or dark houses without a license; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 98.47, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Johnson introduced—

S. F. No. 911: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing that certain improvements to real property used for a homestead not be added to increased valuation of property; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 273.11, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.



Messrs. Peterson and Strand introduced—

S. F. No. 912: A bill for an act relating to retirement; directing recalculation of certain annuities and benefits paid by the teachers retirement association; appropriating funds.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Tennessen, Bang, Kleinbaum, Penny and Engler introduced—

S. F. No. 913: A bill for an act relating to banks and other financial institutions; regulating open end loan accounts; removing certain restrictions; providing for computation of finance charges; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 48.185, Subdivisions 2 and 3.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Dieterich, Coleman, Mmes. Staples and Brataas introduced—

S. F. No. 914: A bill for an act relating to human rights; requiring educational institutions and public services to provide equal opportunity for members of both sexes to participate in athletic programs; prescribing powers and duties for the Minnesota state high school league; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 129.121, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; and Chapter 363, by adding sections; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 126.21.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Ashbach, Dunn and Frederick introduced—

S. F. No. 915: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; providing for apportionment in cases of pre-existing conditions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 176.021, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Chmielewski, Lessard, Setzepfandt and Peterson introduced—

S. F. No. 916: A bill for an act relating to waters; requiring legislative designation of wild and scenic rivers; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 104.34, Subdivision 1; and 104.35, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Keefe, S.; Laufenburger; Mrs. Brataas; Messrs. Willet and Luther introduced—

S. F. No. 917: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; changing certain insurance rate making procedures; directing certain studies; providing for certain schedules and lists; increasing certain staff; relocating workers' compensation court of appeals; changing availability amounts and procedures for obtaining benefits; changing certain presumptions; changing basis for attorneys' fees; changing notice provisions; establishing a reopened case fund and a state compensation reinsurance fund; providing a penalty; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 79.01, by adding a subdivision; 79.07; 79.095; 79.10; 79.22, by adding a subdivision; 175.006, Subdivision 1; 175.08; 176.011, Subdivisions 9 and 15; 176.021, Subdivision 3; 176.061, Subdivision 5; 176.081, Subdivision 5; 176.101, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3 and 4; 176.111, Subdivision 1; 176.131, Subdivisions 3, 10 and by adding a subdivision; 176.135, by adding a subdivision; 176.141; 176.155, Subdivision 2; 176.179; 176.191, and by adding subdivisions; 176.231, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 176.235, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 176.271; 176.391, Subdivision 2; 176.645; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 79.05; 79.06; and 176.101, Subdivision 7.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

#### EXECUTIVE AND OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS

The following communications were received and referred to the committees indicated.

March 6, 1979

The Honorable Edward J. Gearty  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

The following appointments to the Minnesota Water Resources Board are hereby respectfully submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Dr. Benjamin Ramage Harriman, 1335 Pinehurst Avenue, St. Paul, Ramsey County, has been appointed by me, effective March 6, 1979, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1983.

James J. Wychor, 1945 South Shore Drive, Worthington, Nobles County, has been appointed by me, effective March 6, 1979, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1983.

(Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.)

March 6, 1979

The Honorable Edward J. Gearty  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

The following appointment to the State University Board is

hereby respectfully submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Randy Roger Thomas, 107 Parkway Avenue, Mankato, Blue Earth County, has been appointed by me, effective March 6, 1979, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1981.

(Referred to the Committee on Education.)

March 8, 1979

The Honorable Edward J. Gearty  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

The following appointment as Commissioner of the Department of Public Welfare is hereby respectfully submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Arthur Noot, 817 W. Mulberry Street, Stillwater, Washington County, has been appointed by me, effective March 12, 1979, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1983.

(Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.)

March 8, 1979

The Honorable Edward J. Gearty  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

The following appointment as Commissioner of Insurance, Department of Commerce, is hereby respectfully submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Michael Markman, 898 Osceola Avenue, St. Paul, Ramsey County, has been appointed by me, effective March 2, 1979, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1983.

(Referred to the Committee on Commerce.)

Sincerely,

Albert H. Quie, Governor

March 12, 1979

The Honorable Edward J. Gearty  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

I have the honor to inform you that I have received, approved, signed, and deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State, S. F. No. 225.

Sincerely,

Albert H. Quie, Governor

March 13, 1979

The Honorable Rod Searle  
Speaker of the House of Representatives

The Honorable Edward J. Gearty  
President of the Senate

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Act of the 1979 Session of the State Legislature has been received from the Office of the Governor and is deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV, Section 23:

S. F. No.	H. F. No.	Session Laws Chapter No.	Date Approved 1979	Date Filed 1979
225		1	March 12	March 12

Sincerely,

Joan Anderson Growe  
Secretary of State

**CERTIFICATION**

March 12, 1979

To the Senate  
State of Minnesota

To the House of Representatives  
State of Minnesota

This is to certify that the House of Representatives and the Senate in Joint Convention on Monday, March 12, 1979, have elected as members of the Board of Regents of the University of Minnesota the following members each to hold his or her respective office for the term specified from the first Monday of February, 1979:

Charles H. Casey, 1st Congressional District, six years  
Lauris D. Krenik, 2nd Congressional District, six years  
Mary T. Schertler, 4th Congressional District, six years  
William B. Dosland, 7th Congressional District, six years

Edward J. Gearty  
President of the Senate

Rod Searle  
Speaker of the House  
of Representatives

**MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE**

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the

following Senate Files, herewith returned: S. F. Nos. 67 and 411.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives  
Returned March 12, 1979

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House Files, herewith transmitted: H. F. Nos. 167, 218, 245, 263, 303, 340 and 416.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives  
Transmitted March 12, 1979

#### FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

H. F. No. 167: A bill for an act relating to the city of Virginia; extending an eligibility deadline for special funding for the improvement of a segment of a certain municipal state-aid street within the city.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

H. F. No. 218: A bill for an act relating to public utilities; removing cooperative telephone associations from the rate jurisdiction of the public service commission; granting associations an option as to rate regulations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 237.06.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H. F. No. 245: A bill for an act relating to the department of public safety; changing the name of the highway patrol to the state patrol; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 299D.01, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on General Legislation and Administrative Rules.

H. F. No. 263: A bill for an act relating to juvenile court referees; authorizing referees to hear contested trials, hearings, or motions unless objection is made; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 484.70, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

H. F. No. 303: A bill for an act validating and legalizing certain state assignment certificates.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

H. F. No. 340: A bill for an act relating to the town of Leota

in Nobles county; authorizing the establishment of a detached banking facility.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H. F. No. 416: A bill for an act relating to legal process; providing for replevin of personal property before and after a hearing; providing for bonds; providing a penalty; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 565.01; 565.02; 565.03; 565.04; 565.05; 565.06; 565.07; 565.08; 565.09; 565.10; and 565.11.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S. F. No. 179 now on the Calendar.

#### REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Coleman moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted, with the exception of reports pertaining to appointments and the report on H. F. No. 186. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Anderson from the Committee on Energy and Housing, to which was re-referred

S. F. No. 26: A bill for an act relating to the city of Moorhead; authorizing a housing finance program and providing for the issuance of general obligation and revenue bonds to finance the program.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 8, after "boundaries" insert "as of January 1, 1979"

Page 3, delete lines 1 to 17

Page 3, line 18, delete "2" and insert "3"

Page 3, line 19, delete "and by section 2,"

Page 3, line 24, after the period, insert "The total amount of revenue bonds authorized to be issued for the purposes of this act shall not exceed \$20,000,000."

Page 3, line 25, delete "4" and insert "3"

Page 3, line 27, delete "sections 2 and 3" and insert "section 2"

Page 3, line 28, delete "3" and insert "2"

Page 4, line 7, delete "5" and insert "4"

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, delete "general obligation and"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government, to which was referred

S. F. No. 117: A bill for an act relating to special acts passed in accordance with the Constitution, Article XII, Section 2; requiring local approval in certain cases; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 645.021 and 645.023, Subdivision 1.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred

S. F. No. 322: A bill for an act relating to elections; restoring the right to vote to certain persons under guardianship; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 201.15.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, lines 15 and 16, delete the new language

Page 1, line 20, after "court" insert ", or transferred from guardianship to conservatorship"

Page 2, line 9, after the comma, insert "or of a transfer from guardianship to conservatorship,"

Page 2, after line 12, insert:

"Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 525.551, is amended to read:

525.551 [HEARING; APPOINTMENT; BOND; PROSECUTION; NOTICE.] *Subdivision 1.* Upon proof of the petition, the court shall appoint one or two persons suitable and competent to discharge the trust as general guardians or conservators of the person or estate or of both. Upon the filing of a bond in such an amount as the court may direct and an oath according to law, or upon the filing of an acceptance of the trust pursuant to section 48.79, letters of guardianship or conservatorship shall issue. If there be no personal property, the court may waive the filing of a bond, but if the guardian or conservator receives or becomes entitled to any such property he shall immediately file a report thereof and a bond in such amount as the court may direct. In case of breach of any condition of the bond an action thereon may be prosecuted by leave of the court by any interested person. If the ward or conservatee be a patient of a state hospital for the mentally ill, or committed to the guardianship or conservatorship of the commissioner of public welfare as mentally retarded, epileptic, dependent and neglected or is under the temporary custody of the commissioner of public welfare, the court shall notify the commissioner of public welfare of the appointment of a guardian or conservator or successor guardian or conservator of the estate of such the ward or conservatee.

*Subd. 2.* If the court finds that a person for whom guardianship is sought remains competent to vote, or that the circumstances otherwise warrant, the court may treat a petition for guardianship as a petition for conservatorship.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 525.61, is amended to read:

525.61 [RESTORATION TO CAPACITY.] Any person who is under guardianship or conservatorship (except as a minor, or as a feeble-minded or epileptic person, or a person under guardianship or conservatorship in the juvenile court), or his guardian or conservator, or any other person interested in him or his estate may petition the court in which he was so adjudicated to be restored to capacity *or to have a guardianship transferred to a conservatorship*. Upon the filing of ~~such~~ a petition, the court shall fix the time and place for the hearing thereof, notice of which shall be given to the commissioner of public welfare if he was under the control of the commissioner and has not been discharged by the commissioner, and to ~~such~~ *those* other persons and in ~~such~~ a manner as the court may direct.

Any person may oppose ~~such~~ *the* restoration. Upon proof that ~~such~~ *the* person is of sound mind and capable of managing his person and estate, and that he is not likely to expose himself or his family to want or suffering, the court shall adjudge him restored to capacity. In any proceedings for restoration, the court may appoint two duly licensed doctors of medicine to assist in the determination of the mental capacity of the patient. The court shall allow and order paid to each doctor a reasonable sum for his services. Upon ~~such~~ *the* order, the county auditor shall issue a warrant on the county treasurer for the payment thereof."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, delete line 2 and insert "relating to guardianship; providing that a petition for guardianship may be treated as a petition for conservatorship; providing for the transfer of guardianship to conservatorship"

Page 1, line 3, delete "to certain persons under guardianship"

Page 1, line 4, delete "Section" and insert "Sections"

Page 1, line 4, after "201.15" insert "; 525.551; and 525.61"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred

S. F. No. 324: A bill for an act relating to crimes; escape from custody; authorizing prosecution of persons who escape jail while serving time as a condition of probation and persons who fail to report to or return from employment while under work release programs; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 609.485, Subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 17, after "unless" insert "(1)"



Page 1, line 19, delete "unless" and insert "(2)"

Page 2, line 4, delete "shall be considered" and insert "is"

Page 2, after line 5, insert:

"Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 609.485, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [SENTENCE.] Whoever violates this section may be sentenced as follows:

(1) If the person who escapes is in lawful custody on a charge or conviction of a felony, to imprisonment for not more than five years or to payment of a fine of not more than \$5,000, or both.

(2) If such *the* charge or conviction is for a gross misdemeanor, to imprisonment for not more than one year or to payment of a fine of not more than \$1,000, or both.

(3) If such *the* charge or conviction is for a misdemeanor, to imprisonment for not more than 90 days or to payment of a fine of not more than ~~\$300~~ \$500, or both.

(4) *Notwithstanding clauses (1), (2), and (3), whoever violates subdivision 3a may be sentenced to imprisonment for not more than 90 days or to payment of a fine of not more than \$500, or both.*

~~(4)~~ (5) If the escape was affected by violence or threat of violence against a person, the sentence may be increased to not more than twice those permitted in clauses (1), (2), and (3), and (4).

~~(5)~~ (6) Unless a concurrent term is specified by the court, a sentence under this section shall be consecutive to any sentence previously imposed or which may be imposed for any crime or offense for which the person was in custody when he escaped.

Sec. 4. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] *This act is effective the day following final enactment.*"

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 8, delete "Subdivision 3" and insert "Subdivisions 3 and 4"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred

H. F. No. 259: A bill for an act relating to cooperative associations; providing for boards of directors; prescribing the minimum number of directors governing a cooperative apartment corporation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 308.11.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 17, strike "any" and insert "a"

Page 1, line 22, strike "any one" and insert "a"

Page 1, line 22, strike "such" and insert "the"

Page 2, line 1, strike "any" and insert "a"

Page 2, line 15, strike "so"

Page 2, line 17, strike "so"

Page 2, line 19, strike "and in such" and insert "in which"

Page 2, line 21, strike "such"

Page 2, line 23, strike "said" and insert "the"

Page 2, line 27, strike "any" and insert "a"

Page 2, line 28, strike "such" and insert "the"

Page 2, after line 28, insert:

"Sec. 2. *This act is effective the day after final enactment.*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

H. F. No. 186: A bill for an act relating to metropolitan government; providing for the debt of the metropolitan transit commission; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 473.446, Subdivision 1; and Chapter 473, by adding a section; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 473.438, Subdivisions 5 and 6.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Mr. Tennesen questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government, to which was referred

S. F. No. 362: A bill for an act relating to Hennepin County; providing for the appointment, compensation, duties and powers of the medical examiner; amending Laws 1963, Chapter 848, Section 1, Subdivision 2; Section 5; and by adding a section; repealing Laws 1963, Chapter 848, Section 1, Subdivision 4.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Pages 3 and 4, delete section 3

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, delete "duties and powers" and insert "and duties"

Page 1, lines 5 and 6, delete "and by adding a section;"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Hughes from the Committee on Education, to which was referred

S. F. No. 435: A bill for an act relating to education; increasing the maximum awards for scholarships and grants-in-aid; changing the eligibility for certain financial assistance; increasing the bonding authority of the higher education coordinating board; requiring that data on certain applicants for student financial assistance be classified as private and providing an exception; increasing the eligibility for a tuition subsidy for a public post-secondary vocational-technical school; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 136A.121, Subdivisions 4, 5, 7 and 8; 136A.162; 136A.171; and 136A.236, Subdivision 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Report adopted.

Mr. Hughes from the Committee on Education, to which was referred

S. F. No. 618: A bill for an act relating to education; transferring certain functions of teacher licensing from the state board of education, the department of education and the commissioner of education to the board of teaching; eliminating the requirement that certain rules of the board of teaching be approved by the board of education; requiring that the board of teaching adopt certain rules pursuant to chapter 15; providing that the expense of administering certain sections be paid for solely from appropriations made to the board of teaching; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 125.05, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 125.08; 125.182, Subdivision 2; 125.185, Subdivisions 4, 6 and 9; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 125.182, Subdivision 4 and 125.185, Subdivision 4a.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.05, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

125.05 [BOARD TO ISSUE LICENSES.] Subdivision 1. [QUALIFICATIONS.] The authority to license teachers as defined herein in section 125.03 is vested in the board of teaching but based solely on criteria and qualifications approved by the state board of education. ~~except that~~ the authority to license superintendents and principals is vested in the state board of education. Licenses shall be issued to such persons as the board of teaching or the state board of education finds to be physically competent and morally fit ~~to teach~~ for their respective positions. Qualifications of teachers and other professional employees ~~except superintendents and principals~~ shall be determined by the board of teaching under the rules which it promulgates. Licenses under the jurisdiction of

*the board of teaching shall be issued by the commissioner and the commissioner shall issue licenses to any qualified blind graduates of a school of education through the licensing section of the department of education. Principals' and superintendents' licenses under the jurisdiction of the state board of education shall be issued through the licensing section of the department of education.*

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.05, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [EXPIRATION AND RENEWAL.] *Each license issued by the board of teaching and each principal's or superintendent's license issued by the state board of education shall bear the date of issue. Licenses shall expire and be renewed in accordance with the respective rules promulgated by the board of teaching or the state board of education. Renewal requirements for the renewal of a license shall include the production of satisfactory evidence of successful teaching experience for at least one school year during the period covered by the license in grades or subjects for which the license is valid or the completion of such additional preparation as the board of teaching shall prescribe. Requirements for the renewal of a principal's or superintendent's license shall be established by the state board of education.*

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.08, is amended to read:

125.08 [TEACHERS' AND ADMINISTRATORS' LICENSES, FEES.] *Each application for the issuance, renewal, or extension of a license to teach shall be accompanied by a processing fee in an amount set by the board of teaching by rule. Each application for the issuance, renewal or extension of a superintendent's or principal's license shall be accompanied by a processing fee in an amount set by the state board of education by rule. Except as otherwise provided in this section, these fees The processing fee for a teacher's license shall be paid to the executive secretary of the board of teaching. The processing fee for a superintendent's or principal's license shall be paid to the commissioner, who. The executive secretary of the board of teaching and the commissioner shall deposit them the fees with the state treasurer, as provided by law, and report each month to the commissioner of finance the amount of fees collected. The fees as set by the boards shall be nonrefundable for applicants not qualifying for a license, provided however, that a fee shall be refunded by the state treasurer in any case in which the applicant already holds a valid unexpired license.*

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.182, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. "Teacher" means a supervisor, classroom teacher, or other similar professional employee required to hold a license from the state department of education, board of teaching.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.183, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

125.183 [MEMBERSHIP.] Subdivision 1. A board of teaching

consisting of 17 16 members appointed by the governor is hereby established. Membership terms, compensation of members, removal of members, the filling of membership vacancies, and fiscal year and reporting requirements shall be as provided in sections 214.07 to 214.09. No member shall be reappointed for more than one additional term.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.183, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. Except for the representatives of higher education and the public, to be eligible for appointment to the board of teaching a person must be fully licensed for the position he holds and have at least five years teaching experience in Minnesota, including the two years immediately preceding nomination and appointment. The board shall be composed of one teacher whose responsibilities are those either of a counselor, librarian, psychologist, remedial reading teacher, speech therapist, vocational teacher, or certified school nurse, ~~four~~ *three* elementary school classroom teachers, ~~four~~ *three* secondary classroom teachers, ~~three~~ *two* higher education representatives, from higher education faculties preparing teachers, ~~two~~ *one* of whom shall be ~~representatives~~ *a representative* of state institutions and one of whom shall be a representative of private institutions; one school administrator and ~~four~~ *six* members of the public. Each nominee other than a public nominee shall be selected on the basis of his professional experience, and knowledge of teacher education, accreditation and licensure.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.185, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. The board shall develop and create rules for the licensure of public school teachers and interns, ~~which shall be submitted to the state board of education for approval~~, and from time to time the board of teaching shall revise or supplement the rules for licensure of public school teachers subject to ~~approval by the state board of education the provisions of chapter 15~~. It shall be the duty of the board of teaching to establish rules for the approval of teacher education programs ~~subject to approval by the board of education~~. ~~Subject to rules approved by the board of education,~~ . The board of teaching shall also grant licenses to interns and to candidates for original licenses and receive recommendations from local committees as established by the board of teaching for the renewal of teaching licenses, to grant life licenses to those who qualify according to requirements established by the board of teaching, and suspend or revoke licenses pursuant to sections 125.09 and 214.10. With regard to vocational education teachers the board of teaching shall adopt and maintain as its rules the rules of the state board for vocational education.

In the event the state board of education disapproves any proposal from the board of teaching, it shall give written notice of such disapproval within 60 days after the receipt of the proposal including its reasons. Any proposal disapproved by the state board may be resubmitted by the board of teaching at any time after the expiration of 45 days after the date of disapproval.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.185, Subdivision 4a, is amended to read:

Subd. 4a. Prior to the adoption by the board of teaching of any rule which must be submitted to public hearing ~~and to the state board of education for approval~~, a representative of the commissioner shall appear before the board of teaching and at the hearing required pursuant to section 15.0412, subdivision 4, to comment on the cost and educational implications of that proposed rule. ~~If the representative of the commissioner does not carry out the duties required by this subdivision, the state board of education shall not use the cost factor as a reason for disapproval of that rule.~~

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.185, Subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. The state board of education shall provide all necessary materials and assistance for the transaction of the business of the board of teaching and all moneys received by the board of teaching shall be paid into the state treasury as provided by law. The expenses of administering sections 125.01 to 125.187 *which are incurred by the board of teaching* shall be paid for from appropriations made to the state board of education and to the board of teaching.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.185, Subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. The board of teaching may adopt rules *subject to the provisions of chapter 15* to implement sections 125.04 to 125.09 and 125.181 to 125.187; ~~after approval by the state board of education.~~

Sec. 11. *Nothing contained in sections 1 to 7 shall be construed as affecting the validity of a permanent license or certificate issued prior to August 1, 1979.*

Sec. 12. *Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.182, Subdivision 4, is repealed."*

Strike the title in its entirety and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to education; transferring certain functions of teacher licensing from the state board of education, the department of education and the commissioner of education to the board of teaching; eliminating the requirement that certain rules of the board of teaching be approved by the board of education; reducing the membership of the board of teaching; requiring that the board of teaching adopt certain rules pursuant to Chapter 15; eliminating certain requirements for rulemaking; providing that the expense of administering certain sections be paid for solely from appropriations made to the board of teaching; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 125.05, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 125.08; 125.182, Subdivision 2; 125.183, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 125.185, Subdivisions 4, 4a, 6 and 9; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 125.182, Subdivision 4."

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred

S. F. No. 606: A bill for an act relating to the revisor of statutes; publication of the Minnesota Statutes, Supplement and Session Laws by the revisor; correcting certain obsolete provisions; clarifying certain provisions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 482.09; 482.11; 648.31, Subdivision 1; 648.32; 648.40; and 648.41, Subdivision 1.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred

H. F. No. 13: A bill for an act relating to obscenity; prohibiting the showing of obscene motion pictures at drive-in theatres; providing for a hearing in the courts to determine if a motion picture is obscene; prescribing penalties.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 10, delete "to 4" and insert "and 2"

Page 2, line 29, delete "An obscene motion picture"

Page 2, delete line 30 and insert "Subject to the exemptions of section 617.295, a person who exhibits an obscene motion picture at a drive-in theatre is guilty of a misdemeanor."

Pages 2 to 4, delete sections 3 and 4

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, delete line 4

Page 1, line 5, delete "if a motion picture is obscene;"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Anderson from the Committee on Energy and Housing, to which was referred the following appointment as reported in the Journal for February 26, 1979:

#### **MINNESOTA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY**

##### **DIRECTOR**

James J. Solem

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointment be confirmed.

Mr. Coleman moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Tennesen from the Committee on Commerce, to which was referred the following appointment as reported in the Journal for February 19, 1979:

**DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE**  
**DIRECTOR, CONSUMER SERVICES SECTION**

Krista Sanda

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointment be confirmed.

Mr. Coleman moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Coleman from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which were referred

H. F. Nos. 3 and 9 for comparison with companion Senate Files, reports the following House Files were found identical and recommends the House Files be given their second readings and substituted for their companion Senate Files as follows:

<b>GENERAL ORDERS</b>		<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>		<b>CALENDAR</b>	
H. F. No.	S. F. No.	H. F. No.	S. F. No.	H. F. No.	S. F. No.
3	2				
9	91				

and that the above Senate Files be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.

Mr. Coleman from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred

H. F. No. 201 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with its companion Senate File as follows:

<b>GENERAL ORDERS</b>		<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>		<b>CALENDAR</b>	
H. F. No.	S. F. No.	H. F. No.	S. F. No.	H. F. No.	S. F. No.
201	14				

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H. F. No. 201 be amended as follows:

Page 1, delete lines 17 and 18

And when so amended H. F. No. 201 will be identical to S. F. No. 14, and further recommends that H. F. No. 201 be given its second reading and substituted for S. F. No. 14, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted



by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Hanson from the Subcommittee on Bill Scheduling, to which were referred S. F. Nos. 418, 213, 470, 549, 530, 538, 572, 546, 466, 601 makes the following report:

That the above Senate Files be placed on the General Orders Calendar in the order indicated.

That there were no other bills before the Subcommittee on which floor action was requested. Report adopted.

#### SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

S. F. Nos. 26, 117, 322, 324, 362 and 606 were read the second time and referred to the Subcommittee on Bill Scheduling of the Committee on Rules and Administration.

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

H. F. Nos. 3, 201 and 9 were read the second time.

H. F. Nos. 259 and 13 were read the second time and referred to the Subcommittee on Bill Scheduling of the Committee on Rules and Administration.

#### MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Mr. Chmielewski moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as co-author to S. F. No. 186. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Nichols moved that his name be stricken as co-author to S. F. No. 223. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Strand moved that the name of Mr. Olhoft be added as co-author to S. F. No. 223. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Sikorski moved that his name be stricken as co-author to S. F. No. 766. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Sikorski moved that his name be stricken as co-author to S. F. No. 767. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Hughes moved that the name of Mr. Hanson be added as co-author to S. F. No. 818. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Peterson moved that the name of Mr. Chmielewski be added as co-author to S. F. No. 819. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Peterson moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as co-author to S. F. No. 821. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Lessard moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as co-author to S. F. No. 825. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Nelson moved that the name of Mr. Frederick be added as co-author to S. F. No. 836. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Anderson moved that the names of Messrs. Vega and

Merriam be added as co-authors to S. F. No. 840. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Penny moved that the name of Mr. Olhoff be added as co-author to S. F. No. 851. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Humphrey moved that the names of Messrs. Merriam, Anderson and Olhoff be added as co-authors to S. F. No. 859. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Vega moved that the name of Mr. Peterson be added as co-author to S. F. No. 862. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Dieterich moved that the name of Mr. Vega be added as co-author to S. F. No. 868. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Anderson moved that the names of Messrs. Vega and Ulland, J. be added as co-authors to S. F. No. 869. The motion prevailed.

Messrs. Dieterich and Coleman introduced—

Senate Resolution No. 18: A Senate resolution congratulating the St. Paul Central High School Basketball Team on winning second place in the State AA Basketball Tournament.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

### CALENDAR

S. F. No. 288: A bill for an act relating to unemployment compensation; making certain employees of educational cooperative service units ineligible for benefits during certain periods; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 268.08, Subdivision 6.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 62 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Gearty	Laufenburger	Perpich	Staples
Bang	Gunderson	Lessard	Peterson	Stokowski
Benedict	Hanson	Lewis	Pillsbury	Strand
Bernhagen	Hughes	Luther	Purfeerst	Stumpf
Brataas	Humphrey	McCutcheon	Renneke	Tennessee
Chenoweth	Jensen	Menning	Rued	Ulland, A.
Chmielewski	Johnson	Merriam	Schaaf	Ulland, J.
Coleman	Keefe, J.	Moe	Schmitz	Vega
Davies	Kirchner	Nelson	Schrom	Wegener
Dieterich	Kleinbaum	Nichols	Setzepfandt	Willet
Dunn	Knaak	Olhoff	Sikorski	
Engler	Knoll	Olson	Sillers	
Frederick	Knutson	Penny	Spear	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

**GENERAL ORDERS**

The Senate resolved itself into a Committee of the Whole, with Mr. Gearty in the chair.

After some time spent therein, the committee arose, and Mr. Gearty reported that the committee had considered the following:

S. F. Nos. 218, 207, 72, 484 and H. F. No. 9 which the committee recommends to pass.

S. F. No. 276 which the committee reports progress, subject to the following motion:

Mr. Peterson moved to amend S. F. No. 276 as follows:

Page 3, line 27, strike "Laws 1975, Chapter 359" and insert "*this chapter*"

Page 4, strike lines 5 to 33

Strike page 5

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

On motion of Mr. Coleman, the report of the Committee of the Whole, as kept by the Secretary, was adopted.

**MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS—CONTINUED**

Mr. Coleman moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 9:30 o'clock a.m., Monday, March 19, 1979. The motion prevailed.

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate